RelmR

Consohdated Income Statement

BE-ZE-RE+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2016

2015
T
HK$'000
FILE A Interest income 6 816,314 838,496
A2 Interest expense 7 (325,672) (248,168)
E RS WA Net interest income 490,642 590,328
B EMR 2R P A Net premiums earned 8 315,004 378,613
E A Other income 9 213,104 142,826
ZEFWA Operating income 1,018,750 1,111,767
HR(TE)/Bl% 25 Net claims (incurred)/written back 8 (4,066) 7,583
HeS 2 Net commission expenses 8 (116,959) (83,368)
ZELH Operating expenses 10 (276,693) (266,648)
RITBERHZREHA] Operating profit before impairment 621,032 769,334
RRORER % Write-back of loan impairment allowances 13 713 242
R B a Fl Profit before taxation 621,745 769,576
Fi I Taxation 14(a) (17,761) (44,424)
REE R F Profit for the year 603,984 725,152
F1485 238 T Fr k£ LR & MBS IRFT A — o The notes on pages 148 to 238 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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et HEWE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-R"E+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2016

REE R Profit for the year 603,984 725,152
HitemEis : Other comprehensive income:
HEWREFP»EREHRRN Items that are or may be reclassified
mA : subsequently to profit or loss:
A SIS - Available-for-sale securities:
— KU (SiR) A5 — net unrealised gains/(losses) 733 (111,566)
— HENQAFEELZEA — fair value changes transferred to
a3k income statement on disposal 12 (122,970) (129,989)
— FRIn — tax effect 14(b) 20,024 39,927
IR Cash flow hedges:
— RABERO AT EES — fair value changes transferred to
income statement - 3,242
— I — tax effect - (535)
REFHMESE S - Other comprehensive loss for the year,
2 B T In net of tax (102,213) (198,921)
AEELEKE LM Total comprehensive income
for the year 501,771 526,231

F148F238TFTE M WG &M S IRF=H—EB% < The notes on pages 148 to 238 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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RElSIRaR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=B-RF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2016

2015
T
HK$'000
B’ ASSETS
NeREHRe Cash and short-term funds 16 23,815,671 21,007,367
RIF B RS 5K Interest and remittance receivables 17 359,409 326,778
PTHEESRMTE Derivative financial instruments 18 245,097 473,403
TIRBE AN Loan portfolio, net 19 9,533,961 11,502,312
IEHER Investment securities:
—AEE — available-for-sale 20(a) 6,977,677 6,638,367
—REEIH — held-to-maturity 20(b) 9,931,665 10,274,001
IS FRIN ~ 32 E R E AR~ Prepayments, deposits and other assets 22 359,809 87,239
[&] 7 7 7= Fixed assets 23 18,527 26,630
BIRE R Reinsurance assets 26 146,027 128,653
BiE B Total assets 51,387,843 50,464,750
R LIABILITIES
RIS F) & Interest payable 24 218,153 170,853
RIfFMRIRN ~ RS TS % Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hfth 51 5= and other liabilities 25 5,228,393 4,795,423
PTESRBMTEA Derivative financial instruments 18 1,702,859 1,821,927
= HATR I 47 57 Current tax liabilities 14(b) 94,745 129,153
16 JEFH IR 5 Deferred tax liabilities 14(b) 16,660 37,093
RIS 5 Insurance liabilities 26 1,048,550 978,845
B RITHRSBIES Debt securities issued 27 34,233,467 33,463,211
E B Total liabilities 42,542,827 41,396,505
& EQUITY
WNEFFB AR SRR Capital and reserves attributable
Tfifs to the equity holders:
i Share capital 28 2,000,000 2,000,000
IREB & A Retained profits 5,023,307 5,251,052
MBS & Contingency reserve 1,739,389 1,632,660
NEEER Fair value reserve 82,320 184,533
N B8 Total equity 8,845,016 9,068,245
5 R 2% B Total liabilities and equity 51,387,843 50,464,750

EEREF = —HEm A FREREMTT . Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 April
2017.

MRiERR Norman T. L. Chan =45 Raymond L. C. Li
Bl F EF#M7TEE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #77Z F 38 & Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

F148F 238 T ATk M T WG A SRR —58% - The notes on pages 148 to 238 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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RENATHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-—XRE+ZA=+—HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2016

REHEANL
Attributable to equity holders
A REEA RE#E  AVEREE HHhiE
Share Retained Contingency  Fair value Hedging 54
capital profits reserve reserve reserve Total
i AT AL T TR Titn ThL
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIE-nE-B-B4H Balance as at 1 January 2015 2,000,000 5,070,815 1,437,745 386,161 (2,707) 8,892,014
RER R Profit for the year - 725,152 - - - 72515
Hfrd Al Other comprehensive income:
MHHETH Available-for-sale Securities - - - (201,628) - (201,628)
e Cash flow hedges - - - - 2707 2707
FEELENREH Total comprehensive income for the year - 725152 - (201629) 2707 506,231
BRARTRACHE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net sk
PR IRSE 2 5H S0% 3 75% premium eamed from retained profits
SRR 0 contingency reserve - (221,204) 21,244 - - =
BRRESREZREEH Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits - 26,309 (26,329) - - -
ENZE-mERE Divicends paid related to 2014 15 - (350,000) - - - (350,000
F-Z-RE+-B=t-H%% Balance asat 31 December 2015 2,000,000 5,251,052 1,632,660 184,533 - 9,068,245
REERH Profit for the year - 603,984 - - - 603,984
e El - Other comprehensive income:
ARTETH Avalable-for-sale securities - - - (102213 - (102213)
FEELANGEEH Total comprenensive income for the year - 603,984 - (102213 - 501,771
BRARARALHE Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
JRERIRSE 2814 50% 5 75% premium eamed from retained profts
ENRIEE o contingency reserve - (183,043) 183,043 - - -
BRRL AR RRE &R Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits - 76,314 (76,314) = = =
ERZE-RERE Dividends paid related t0 2015 15 - (725,000) - - - (725,000
F-E-AE+ZA=T-H4% Balance as at 31 December 2016 2,000,000 5,023,307 1,739,389 82,320 - 8,845,016
# A_B—BER -_F——FNITBELEENNSRN & brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when cash
PR TR RIS - Btz - FHFEBHITH flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new cash flow
R TR hedge has been conducted.

$1485238 T e T NiE A M EIRER—E85 = The notes on pages 148 to 238 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZE-RE+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
hpzs TET T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ZELSFRBISRE cash flows from operating activities
Z3=pul Operating profit 621,745 769,576
FA T FIEH Y IFEE - Adjustment for:
FE A Interest income (834,188) (846,024)
F B S7 H Interest expense 271,768 188,653
A% B A Dividend income 9 (83,440) (72,748)
#r18 Depreciation 10 15,885 17,772
B R ITERBUE ST S Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 53,904 59,515
WO EE T Write-back of loan impairment
allowances 13 (713) (242)
WS R o P Amortisation of premium on investment
securities 17,874 7,528
SR RS 28 Net gains on disposal of investments 12 (159,841) (122,010)
& & E R 7 R M as Gain on disposal of fixed assets (20) =
ST ANTEETH Change in fair value of financial
instruments 10,171 (5,037)
IMERIHRE N FEED) Fair value changes of cash flow hedges
AU TR transferred to income statement - 3,242
BFE Interest received 798,876 851,007
BFE Interest paid (224,468) (161,844)
K ITRERFE RGBT TIH Cash flows from operating activities
ZEVRRENShE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 487,553 689,388
IREIEABR B = A E 2R Change in time deposits with original
EHTF A3 maturity of more than three months (4,468,020) (3,237,239)
N UWOC A Z) Change in remittance receivables 2,681 19,090
Wt~ e R EAAEA g Change in prepayments, deposits and
other assets (271,363) (65,900)
RREEE D Change in loan portfolio 1,969,064 4,069,579
RATHRIN « R FF 2 K% Change in accounts payable, accrued
Eﬁ‘@ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ expenses and other liabilities 432,970 (4,155)
IRBe TG EN AR Change in insurance liabilities, net 52,331 (117,718)
SNTCH ZEER Exchange differences 28,433 55,156
ZXE(FTA)/FiENs Cash (used-in)/generated from operation (1,766,351) 1,408,201
SRR Taxation paid (53,785) (49,500)
ZE WS (FrR) /s Net cash (used-in)/generated from
b= Ll operating activities (1,820,136) 1,358,701
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REZEDABUERE

Cash flows from investing activities

4 3% & & R 5= Purchase of fixed assets 23 (7,782) (9,293)
MR el il & Purchase of available-for-sale securities 20(a) (4,422,019) (4,265,100)
L1582 B A% Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 20(b) (676,237) (2,112,356)
I R B A] 4 B E Proceeds from sale and redemption of
Fir 15 ZX3m available-for-sale securities 4,112,006 3,232,635
L R BB A A I HRE 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT{5 3k held-to-maturity securities 981,760 956,997
o & B R 7 AT S R Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 20 =
B UG A] ft H EE AR B Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 83,440 72,748
RESNE (T4 221 Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 71,188 (2,124,369)
il %% BT 2 & 5 R AR Net cash outflows before financing (1,748,948) (765,668)
REENBAERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITEFKATS RN Proceeds from bank borrowings 56,834,109 129,823,901
EEERITIE K Repayment of bank borrowings (56,834,109) (129,823,901)
RITRSUE B I Proceeds from issue of debt securities 27 24,501,707 22,991,809
B[O B A1THRSBUES Redemption of debt securities issued 27 (23,686,351) (22,526,495)
B R Dividends paid 15 (725,000) (350,000)
BEE TSI S 85 Net cash generated from financing
activities 90,356 115,314
MERZERMETIH B ST Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (1,658,592) (650,354)
FONERERNELIE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 7,762,550 8,413,912
CRWNNESRERNEWE 2 Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (1,124) (1,008)
FANERERNEIE Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 6,102,834 7,762,550

F 1485238 T e[t T WA MEIRFKA —EB5 ©

BERARBILESARA A

The notes on pages 148 to 238 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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REWFHKRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 1) Bk ifE

BERBIESBER AR (XAR) REWE
NE(GMARE) NEFEEMSRE - BI%
RAFBE UMMM T EM SRS
EN(BRAEERN M RITENSIRE &
W FEAENRIER) - BERIANS
RN SE (R RO E IR

REEMESMRIZALRABRGIgwS - I

B BLIA R FAESI 0K &Y AT 4 S5 1R
ERAFLERAGR(BETEERTIA)
MEMIEHEE -

BRITBRRES - RwEIL LR A M SRR
MAMSITEERITETE - SREZR
A FEMMAM R —2 -

IREIFFE BB SRS HEN R S IRER
MERETRESIHEIT MERENA
RERASITTERN I B TIEL FIE - F
BRZHAM KR E ZEADEE - BRIk R
HNZEEMESREREEZAEE BN
JEAREEE o

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2016

The following amendments to HKFRSS effective in 2016
are relevant to the Group:

. Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure Initiative”;

. Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
“Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation”; and

o “Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle”.

The amendments to HKFRSs effective in 2016 have no
material impact on the Group.

New standards and amendments issued but not yet
effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2016, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

EBRBISERLAT —T—A~FEEHR 149



mEMEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEMSMEENE IS o
[@RT A HXIERA
FMemAGRN D%
TTERZIEHIA AX
A5 AN K
B R A =5l AFTRER
B gRABTESIUE
ME39S[EmIA:
FIARITE ] - BEWS
REENE 9 SIREB A
HREEITEMER - H
N FhE P HIE = E
LITBA - BB
“ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ')\ﬁ’r@
it Afiss - “*E’]%
RN AL SR
VNS & S -k B
EMEFBMETE - R
?EZKEIE’MLREJU‘A
&IEE’]/\Q’JW%/A’?E
B DA 4R 59 2K
f%ﬁ%ﬁ’]inﬁﬁ#ﬁ’]b
ST EMItrHE 5HE
NARAFEEEITAE
kel & e o)
NRENFAEE
ERMAFHNRSZIAR
BIFAEE - Bt A
BAREHAM I SER R
%ﬁﬁ;ﬁfté’]/—\é’vfﬂﬁiﬁ
SR N PEIER -
HxTXIEl\E’UTﬁ;ﬁ'ZﬁDA
N FEZMIT AR K
itE - BT YA Al E
IR {EIbviE= /NS -]
W E It AR M2 E
Wam - XL RR
B 5 O I &5 7% Y AT BE o
$%‘E<.—H/\t|i%9'\lﬂxﬂ
TERHEKRBH
RN AR :FTEXTJC
TTAHE M 2 E -

150 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2016

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses
requirements for classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment model
for financial assets. It replaces HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial
assets: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Debt instruments currently
classified as available-for-sale financial assets
would appear to satisfy the conditions for
classification as at FVOCI based on the Group's
business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments. Debt
instruments currently presented as held-to-
maturity financial assets and loan portfolio
would appear to satisfy the conditions for
classification as at amortised cost based on the
Group’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Investments in equity instruments are required
to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss with the irrevocable option at inception
to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income without the possibility to
recycle these results to the income statement.
A significant portion of the Group’s available-for-
sale equity instruments would be classified as at
FVOCI.
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There is now a new expected credit losses
model that replaces the incurred loss impairment
model used in HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. The Group is currently refining its
impairment loss estimation methodology to
quantify the impact on its financial statements.

For financial liabilities there were no changes
to classification and measurement except for
the recognition of changes in own credit risk
in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Classification of financial liabilities will remain
largely unchanged for the Group.

HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests and adopting a
more principles-based approach. It requires
an economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the hedged
ratio to be the same as the one management
actually use for risk management purposes.
Contemporaneous documentation is still required
but is different to that currently prepared under
HKAS 39. The Group expects that the current
hedge relationships would qualify as continuing
hedges under HKFRS 9.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early
adoption permitted. The Group plans to adopt
the standard when it becomes effective in 2018
without restating comparative information and
is gathering data to quantify the potential impact
arising from the adoption.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. A
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. HKFRS 16
will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the statement of financial position as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements
in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$29,753,000
(Note 30). The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of the standard on its financial position
and results of operations. The standard is
mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

TIH& B H At 8 R 4 A B There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
W& R EEMN S X AREF 7= £ that would be expected to have a material impact on
EARFM © the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2016.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities
used for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2.3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.
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2.5.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence
of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

(i)  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or
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(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel; or

(i)~ financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.
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Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (fair
value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified
to income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.
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If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification
date.
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2.6. Impairment of financial assets

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (loss event) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor,

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

3 initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation,

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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. observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant. For exposures which
are not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment 10ss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.
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The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups
of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period
to period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans
are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount
of the allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.

EERBISARAT —S—~EFHF 161



mEMEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(©

mARRESHRERERD - B
SHWINRERRENEHAR
MERF - NS EFIANEIES
MBI IFHBREKE QK -
ElR S E T WK AN ©

WIF Sy ] i R A A B

AERAERZHMPRITEES
EVIEREER - Mol &
AR AR HHERF LI
BB - N THRFIUES - AEH
KALAL () FTiR K HO AR © =
T3 RN A B R AUR
7 EEAFEKES K
RTRA - TRRERIZER
HIURERIESE © Al gtiH &
TRAFFEZTIERE  H2
it 5 ROEIE A KA SIE A
FEZZFHRRED T
RBINZ SRR~ RESR)
FENEKREENRER - 0E
FRENAHEEZ TRHOR
FEE - FEHIARER KX
EZEMHEENRE - WAX
BETIREREMREE T s
KA

BEEHTM

SERAREFHHENHE
A TURINE BB RN
SR B BHDIRAE o

(©

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-
for-sale investment or a group of available-for-sale
investments is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of the instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is
reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are treated as renegotiated
loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail
Bond Issuance Programme (RBIP) and (iii) notes issued
under the Medium Term Note (MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the

income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements — over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
Statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

EERBIISARAT —S—~EFHF 169



mEMEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.16. =4 HA B2 36 FE F I

HIR BRI B 18 4 B RO R I
BRIl RNFIA - BRAES R
AT H b EUas#90 B s B R AN
SRFIA - EXFERLT - BB
R b2 E R B EAENE I ©

X TR 45 2 1R AR 2 900 3SR
SAFREOBIE L -

125 FER ISR A L BURIZ 5 7 R A Y
MESZEEMSIHERMZFIKEEZ
TRl ZFER IR E o BEHIUR A
& 2 MR A0 2 SRR 90D H TR
FEAR SR I FERS TR 7= AL I 3% FE A U
AREENERZRERETE -

fisd AT BB AR SR R IR B A 5 7T 3 E
B Z AR - MBS ER IR = °
BrAr et Z H a0tk Bl AN SR -
FHA AIREFE AT LU SR 2 9K [ A
ZE  BIRR MY E 2 B i 7 A Y A
ZHFIEEEH I % -

AT H ERE RIS R A F
EEFITEAEREEMEKET
BRI AMRHR IR I » TN E
REEteERET I AR - &
JREREER S WS RPEIA o

2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the deferred gain or
loss.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@ Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
oCCurs.

(b)  Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.
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2.19.Leases

(@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes
place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.
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2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@ Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for
on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Ccontingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for 10sses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are
primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMES) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly people and
on lump-sum loans provided to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement, in return for an insurance
premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adequate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts.
If the assessment shows that the carrying amount of
its guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate
in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

2.23. R E N e 2.23.Dividend distribution
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Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (ii) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured on residential
properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee
cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to
SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; (vi) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of lump-sum loans to
owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes for
land premium settlement; and (vii) to operate a centralised
microfinance platform to support microfinance loans. By
their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to
the use of financial instruments including cash, loans, debts
and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the
Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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3.2.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition, mortgage insurance, SME
guarantee business and Microfinance Scheme. The ALCO
oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of pricing
economics and associated risks for business transactions,
whilst taking into consideration the latest market conditions
and business strategies approved by the Board. The ORC
is responsible for ensuring that all business entities and
line functions maintain an effective operational risk and
internal control framework. The ORC is also responsible
for providing directions and resolving issues related to
policies, controls and management of operational issues
referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring prompt and
appropriate corrective action in response to audit findings
related to operational risks or internal controls. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review
of the internal control systems of the Company. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on ligquid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.
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To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers with established criteria, (ii) adopt prudent asset
purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk
assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group
are spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
25). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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@@ RITFFAERB MK EMEET (@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
22 HE AR 15 e A B = 15 B UG into account of collateral held or other credit
DI ¢ enhancements are analysed as follows:
REFAERHRTREEERNE The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
S5HIKEESMESE - ERITHE assets of the Group are equal to their carrying
REEZHET - NERR™HREHR amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
FKINW I = 18 BT XL 2 A7 40 the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
Ik taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are

as follows:
FT-F—hF
+—HA=+—8©
As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
FHET FHIT
HK$‘000 HK$'000
MBI LR B2 Total risk-in-force

— RBRRLS — mortgage insurance business 16,839,822 13,408,560

— EMIBRRRARR LSS — other guarantee and insurance
business 4,332,713 2,996,377

21,172,535 16,404,937
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Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as
follows:

F=-=F-— /—E F=F—1%F
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
T FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R ER IR AR BB Neither past due nor impaired 9,302,729 11,190,707
B HAE R R E Past due but not impaired 230,997 311,439
2RE Impaired 1,100 983
RRAE Gross loan portfolio 9,534,826 11,503,129
BIFOR B % Allowance for loan impairment (865) (817)
9,533,961 11,502,312
T 2 REF R AR @ 2 IR AR Rk B The credit quality of loans that were neither past due

HRAAMERER (5%
AR R0 IR R St
GRIE

nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
be assessed by reference to the internal rating system
adopted by the Group.

F==F— /—\E F=F—1%F
+=-—H=+—8 +=—A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
F#&x FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

KAl Grades:
123 1t03 9,294,014 11,169,818
4 4 - 1,271
5 5 8,715 19,618
9,302,729 11,190,707
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either insignificant
credit risk or no recent past due history; and with
different levels of credit enhancements in addition to
the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

F=TF—R"F TFTE—HF
+=—HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
FE&T 4T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B HR - Past due:

=MNAHMAT Three months or less 229,008 309,988

INNAZATE ¢ Six months or less but
BEBI="A over three months 133 455
NNARE Over six months 1,856 996
SE Total 230,997 311,439
Ehifmn A FE Of which fair value of collateral 2,348,154 3,109,508
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group before taking
into account the cash flows from collateral held
amounted to HK$1,100,000 (2015: HK$983,000).

The fair value of related collateral held for individually
impaired loans of the Group was nil (2015: nil).

Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved
by the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).
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@ EHFER (® Investment securities
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According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

RIFSNEBIE TTNAG RO IF R IT O
(FrEER BEREE) T
58 2 R B RAZ ¥ T B ml xS 5
SAUESFE AT o BNES R &
RAWE - MRBIESRZTA
MIFREIR -

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor's, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

A &I 3 FEZEMIS
Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity E#
securities securities Total
F-E-x¥+=-A=+-H Tz TR THET
As at 31 December 2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/A3a AAA/A3a 73,661 1,432,431 1,506,092
AA- 2 AA+ /A33 £ Aal AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,273,891 6,456,545 9,730,436
A-EA+/A3EA A-10 A+/A310 A1 1,249,639 2,042,689 3,292,328
J=kil Total 4,597,191 9,931,665 14,528,856
Ak EIE S RFERIEEA
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity BA
securities securities Total
F-E2-RFT-A=1+-H TAT THT TAT
As at 31 December 2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/Ada 15,537 1,202,859 1,218,396
AA- 2 AA+ /A33 £ Aal AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,306,845 6,755,670 10,062,515
A- ZA+/A3EAT A-10 A+/A310 A1 976,895 2,315,472 3,292,367
J=ki] Total 4,299,277 10,274,001 14,573,278
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued by the use
of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2016 would increase the future net interest
income for the next twelve months by around HK$6 million
(2015: HK$9 million) and decrease by around HK$6 million
(2015: HK$9 million) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2016, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been lower by less than HK$0.1
million (2015: around HK$0.2 million) and the fair value
reserve would have been higher by around HK$6 million
(2015: HK$7 million) as at 31 December 2016. If interest rates
had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards,
profit for the year would have been higher by less than
HK$0.1 million (2015: around HK$0.1 million) and the fair
value reserve would have been lower by around HK$6 million
(2015: HK$7 million).

As at 31 December 2016, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$21 million higher (2015:
HK$15 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$21
million lower (2015: HK$15 million).

As at 31 December 2016, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$4
million higher (2015: HK$7 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for
the year would have been around HK$4 million lower (2015:
HK$7 million).
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As at 31 December 2016, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$24 million lower (2015:
HK$23 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$24 million
higher (2015: HK$23 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are fully
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

Hthopm
Other foreign B8
currencies Total
T TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT eV
HKD usD

TR
HK$'000

TER
HK$'000

F-E-~"E+ZA=1—H Asat31December 2016

Br= Assets
NehEHRE Cash and short-term funds 18,380,846 5,431,538 3,287 23,815,671
R & ROL5k Interest and remittance receivables 225,749 85,349 48,311 359,409
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 245,097 - = 245,097
NRAR AT Loan portfolio, net 9,533,961 - - 9,533,961
AR Investment securities:

—AHEE — available-for-sale 2,553,300 4,424,377 - 6,977,677

—BERIH — held-to-maturity 3,556,967 5,962,873 411,825 9,931,665
AR FOR - me REMAZT  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 51,665 308,052 92 359,809

Bl Fixed assets 18,527 - - 18,527
BRER® Reinsurance assets 146,027 - - 146,027
vk Total assets 34,712,139 16,212,189 463,515 51,387,843
il Liabilities
RIFFIE Interest payable 187,771 319 30,063 218,153
R - AT Z R Accounts payable, accrued

Hpfifi expenses and other liabilities 5,221,640 6,753 - 5,228,393
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 1,702,859 - - 1,702,859
EEH Current tax liabilities 94,745 - - 94,745
BRI Deferred tax liabilities 16,660 - - 16,660
iRB SR Insurance liabilities 1,048,550 - - 1,048,550
B RIS Debt securities issued 28,604,607 379,982+ 5,248,878* 34,233,467
AFREH Total liabilities 36,876,832 387,054 5,278,941 42,542,827
HO2H Net position (2,164,693) 15,825,135 (4,815,426) 8,845,016
RERREINEEWELF Off-balance sheet net notional

position*® (7,218,109) 379,904 5,197,487 (1,640,718)
e [RFEARERINERLEFEL # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

BT EERIA(EZER
VURR AN SR ] T 58 TR B A0 XU
) H) B LS E RN FER
Z o

* SEXHRETT
b BB 44127 T H) R T

FE%H R 8IZBTTH AR i
Kk - H2 B AET

difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
ik Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of

HK$4.4 billion and renminbi of HK$0.8 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.
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F-E-RF+-A=1—F Asat31December 2015

e

)
47

HK$'000 HK$'000

H oM
Other foreign
currencies
T
HK$'000

B
Total
THET
HK$'000

R ASSets
e hEBRe Cash and short-term funds 18,651,940 2,350,198 5,229 21,007,367
R 8 B3R Interest and remittance receivables 203,143 72462 51,173 326,778
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 473079 324 - 473403
RRAR AT Loan portfolio, net 11,502,312 = = 11,502,312
AR Investment securities:

—AHEE — available-for-sale 2,874,408 3,588,811 175,148 6,638,367

—HEZRIH — held-to-maturity 3,835,900 5,824,429 613,672 10,274,001
NI - e REMA  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 41,082 46,059 9% 87,239

Eh e Fixed assets 26,630 - - 26,630
BRE R~ Reinsurance assets 128,653 - - 128,653
RERE Total assets 37,737,147 11,882,283 845,320 50,464,750
ik Liabilities
RIFTHIE Interest payable 136,257 1,814 32,782 170,853
RIFTIKRIA -~ BT R Accounts payable, accrued

H i expenses and other liabilities 4,795,051 372 - 4,795,423
ITESHTA Derivative financial instruments 1,821,927 - - 1,821,927
LEHIA R Current tax liabilities 129,153 - - 129,153
B REHIA Deferred tax liabilities 37,093 - - 37,093
RE F 5 Insurance liabilities 978,845 - - 978,845
BRI S Debt securities issued 20,704,457 1,387,954 11,370,800%% 33463211
AREH Total liabilities 28,602,783 1,390,140 11,403,582 41,396,505
FO2E Net position 9,134,364 10,492,143 (10,558,262) 9,068,245
REffiRINESG WSe:  Off-balance sheet net notional

position* (14,569,037) 1,387,277 11,306,888 (1,874,872

5 [RFEARERINERLFES] ¥ “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EIMITEERITA(EEA difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
LUBR AR S B T 5 IR s R derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
RINBLETMEEATFED reduce the Group'’s exposure to currency movements and their
Z5 ° fair values.

* 2HIPRRBTT 3 Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

s BB IES112 7 T 8 4 i **  Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
FiE % « BB TRIBRITHRS HK$5.1 billion, Australian dollars of HK$4.3 billion and renminbi
IE 35 X202 7% m iy A R 3R of HK$2 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

FiE%  HE2HIHAET
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(b)
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.

190 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2016



-MERE  ZABHE —EpE
E=M\R E-F ik
-MAR Over Over Over BENE Fits
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Non-nterest ot ]
fmonth  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
Thn TH7T Thr TH7T ThR THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FZE-XETZA=1-H Asat31December 2016
R Assets
e REHAE Cash and short-term funds 5067139 12,916,172 5,762,665 - - 69,695 23,815,671
LGN Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 359,409 359,409
EEBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 245,097 245,097
FRER S Loan portfolio, net 9,469,814 33,185 8,142 22,588 232 - 9533961
EHER Investment securities:
—ftHE — avalable-for-sale - 1,445,290 2,016,905 1,134,996 - 2,380,486 6,977,677
—HEEHH — held-to-maturity 155,306 299,968 2,284,802 4,063,715 3,127,374 - 9,931,665
AT ZEREMAF  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 307,955 - - - - 51,854 359,809
BE A~ Fived assets - - - - - 18,527 18,527
BREAT ReinsLrance assets - - - - - 146,027 146,027
RERE Total assets 15,000,714 14,694,615 10,072,514 5221,299 3,127,606 3,271,095 51,387,843
i Liabilities
RfFHE Interest payable - - - - - 218,153 218,153
MA®R - BAFER Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Aot and other liabiltties 5,095,356 - - - - 133,037 5,228,393
ESHTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1702859 1,702,859
EL T Current tax liaoliies - - - - - 94,745 94,745
RIERMA Deferred tax liabities - - - - - 16,660 16,660
REAR Insurance liabilties - - - - - 1008550 1,048,550
BExfIR&IES Debt sectrities issued 5769091 8857902 8464300 7,660,354 3,481,820 - 34,033,467
ARER Total liabilties 10,864,447 8,857,902 8,464,300 7,660,354 3,481,820 3214004 42,542,827
8 SAERD S Total interest sensitvity gap* 4136267 5836713 1608214 (2,439,055  (354,214)
FIEGTETR(BOSA  Interest rate derivatives
2388) (notional amounts of net positior) ~~ (7,735,888)  (12,331,156) 8,453,000 7,582,576 2,390,750
RITASTESRITANBE AT & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

RSB HFEE LRI ° on the debt securities issued.
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—F)E
. 5 3k
AR Over Over ) Fitd

Upto 1 month to 3months Tyearto Over — Non-interest
1month 3months t01year 5Yyears 5years bearing
ThT ThL T L ThT ThL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FoZ-REFZA=1-H  Asat31December2015

A Assets
NeRE#Re Cash and short-term funds 4,362,986 8,265,000 8,300438 - - 78943 21,007,367
A8 L3 Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 36,778 306,778
fiEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 473,403 473403
REAL B8 Loan portfolio, net 11425841 36,035 12,784 27,406 216 - 11502312
E5EE Investment sectrities:

— e — avalable-for-sale 601873 1,365,585 810218 1,521,601 - 233909 6,638,367

—BERIE — held-to-maturity 176973 232505 551,128 5,241,407 4,071,988 - 10,274,001
TR REREMAE  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 45958 - - - - 1,281 87239

BER" Fiked assets - - - - - 26,630 24630
BRRAF Relnsurance assets - - - - - 128653 128653
RESH Total assets 16,613,631 92899125 9,674,568 6,790,414 4072234 3414778 50,464,750
il Liabilities
RfHE Interest payable - - - - - 170853 170853
R - TR Accounts payable, accrued expenses

Efhfifi and other fiabilties 4717601 - - - - 77822 4795423
fiESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 180927 182927
ELil Current tax iabilties - - - - - 129153 129153
BRHAR R Deferred tax liabilties - - - - - 37,093 37,09
B Insurance liabiities - - = = = 978,845 978,845
BRAfR&ES DeDt securites issed 7030867 9,016,8% 6,690,366 7,563,986 3,161,13% - B3
AEEE Total liabilities 11,748,468 9,016,85% 6,690,366 7,563986 3161136 3,215,693 41,396,505
HlegEEHO L Totalinterest sensitivity gap* 4,865,163 882,269 2,984,202 (773572 911,098
FIRFTETAGS OS5 Interestrate derivatives

2348) (notional amounts of net position) (5,080,017 (12,685,001) 6,663,761 7,172,005 2,049,360

* AT APTESRITANE X717 * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
AHIEHEE SR on the debt securities issued.

192 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2016



4, WENFE & K

=0

BN R <8 XUBS HE AN 5= [ R B A2 08 EL
kAR BE N B A M K H DT IR R
BHIXBE - REFTH BN ESRA
Kot - FHRFr A 2 ERERRR 51) 7 it
R ERARML « NEBEY %
B R R SRR FFH L K R4
HENHGRAE - REAREEREZ
REFEEBXRe R & RKIFHEITRIT ©

k3>3

(@ RFAWEREDN

TR TAERHT 2 IRARE
FliAENFHRBERIETETA
& B LA@‘%W%/E@*”
PTHETASRBARKRIALTE
L ﬁ%mi%ﬂlﬂ%Fﬁ
NenE - KNEENSIN
NG LRTINIA L RE -
BEREXFHNAEEHEIH
Hit B/ ARRHA B AFFI ©
AEAMITE T A BRIZR S
BEEZEENNEREHUARIZE
A EEENE R iR -

3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.
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() FITETAIASRH (i)

-MAR

Upto
1 month
T
HK$'000

F-E-AETZA=t-F Asat31December 2016
Ak Liabilities
BRIREES Debt securities issued (2,580,695)

Non-derivative cash outflows

-MNE
Z=/f
Over

1 month to
3 months
TiEn
HK$'000

(7,867,440)

=MAUE
z-%
Over

3 months
to 1year
TR
HK$'000

(9,952,782)

—FHE
%it:3
Over
1year to
5 years
FiEn
HK$'000

(11,668,629)

BEHRE
Over

5 years
Ti#n
HK$'000

(4,400,077)

<t}
Total
TR
HK$'000

(36,469,623)

—M AR

Upto
1 month
AL
HK$'000

F-Z-aF+=A=+—H Asat31December 2015

ik Liabilities
BRITREIE Debt securities issued (4,150,451)

1 month to
3months
T
HK$'000

(4,266,029)

3months
to1year
AL
HK$'000

(9,279,444)

—FNE
BhE
Over
Tyearto
5 years
T
HK$'000

(13,610,074)

hENE
QOver
5years
THL
HK$000

(4,078,459)

o
Total
AL
HK$'000

(35,384,457)
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iy PTEIEIMESRACR (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
i)

-MABE  ZARBE -E0E
E=AB 2-F gt
-MAH Over over over RENE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1 year to Over ki
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEx TR TR TET AR TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-F-AE+ZA=t-F Asat31December 2016

BTAIEREER Derivative financial
fTESRIE: instrument settled:
—AHEE —0n net basis (3,207) (8,013) 38,676 (29,801) (54,991) (57,336)
— BoEE — 0N gr0ss hasis
i Total outflow (571927) (5045173 (1,651 (111097  (1,153575)  (7,503423)
MABH Total inflow 556,450 3,669,019 33,581 712,533 1,022,219 5,993,802

(18,684)  (1,384,167) 50,606 (28,365) (186,347)  (1,566,957)

—FH)E
) i
—MAR Over Over Over RENE
Upto 1 month to 3months 1year to QOver BA
1 month 3months 10 1year 5years 5years Total
AL TAL i T ‘ AL

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-AF+-A=t—H  Asat31December 2015

BTIREEER Derivative financial
fTESBIL: instrument settled:
—AGEE — onnet basis (1,232 (60) 10,130 (2,397) - 6,441
—BHEE — 0N gross basis
ik 54 Total outflow (2935923) (4127509 (1893649 BO6TS (783 (14812161)
MABH Total inflow 2,860,597 3,958,892 1,936,884 3,741,106 665,498 13,162,977

(76,558) (168,677) 53,365 (1,358,045) (92828 (1,642,743)
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(b) ZHB DT (b)  Maturity analysis
TEREREERARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
AFIAERE - DT BXRE~ R relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
AREIEAE R © period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

—MARE EAARE  -FHE
2=/ E-F Z5E
WHES -1MAR Over Over over HEENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over TR BE
ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
TER TER TER TER TER TER TERT TERT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-2-X5+-A=+-H Asat31December2016

B Assets

NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 58,444 5,078,390 12,916,172 5,762,665 - - - 23,815,671

AR Loan portfolio 2,904 71,198 153,904 628,962 2,895,570 5,780,807 1,481 9,534,826

EHRR Investment securities

— e — avallable-for-sale - - 46,526 1,535,103 3,015,562 - 2,380,486 6,977,677

—REEHH — held-to-maturity - 155806 299,968 2,284,802 4,063,715 3,127,374 - 9,931,665

BRRAF Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 146,027 146,027
61,348 5,305,394 13,416,570 10,211,532 9,974,847 8,908,181 2,527,994 50,405,866

4 Liabilities

RIS R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,048,550 1,048,550

BATREEH Debt securities issued - 2523337 7,758,031 9,614,218 10,856,061 3,481,820 - 34,233,467

- 2523337 7758031 9,614,218 10,856,061 3,481,820 1,048,550 35,282,017

s —&E
M ‘ BRF
MasE  —MAR QOver QOver

Repayable Upto 1monthto ~ 3months  1yearto TR

on demand Tmonth  3months  to1year 5years Undated
BT BT TAL TAT TAT : ThT BT
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'00

F-ZF-RE+-A=+-H Asat31December 2015

R Assets
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 68535 4373395 8265000 8,300,437 - - - 21,007,367
RHAEE Loan portfolio 3425 83,115 177,580 744518 3418852 7,074,094 1545 11,503,129
IEFRR Investment securiies
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale - 601,873 477899 1,697,903 1,521,602 - 233909 6638367
—HBEHES — held-to-maturity - 176,973 - 783,633 5241407 4,071,988 - 10,274,001
BREAF Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 128,653 128,653
71960 5235356 8920479 11526491 10,181,861 11,146,082 2,469,288 49,551,517
il Liabilities
REH 5t Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 978845 978845
BAARSIES Debt securities issued - 4106271 4137561 8915442 13142801 3,161,136 - 33463211

- 4106271 4137561 8915442 13142801 3,161,136 978,845 34,442,006
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3.5. fRE X
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 30% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or
below at origination, or other thresholds as specified from
time to time. The Group also provides financial guarantee
cover to Als up to 50% — 70% of the banking facilities
granted to SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong,
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als and secured on residential properties,
and in respect of lump-sum loans advanced by such Als
to owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes
primarily for land premium settlement and secured on these
properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance
of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.
Low mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over
time. This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as
there is a risk of the property value insufficient to cover the
outstanding loan balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-
share reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers
in an effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage
insurance business. The Group conducts comprehensive
assessment including the financial strength and credit
ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the
approved selection framework set by the Credit Committee.
The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic
reviews. For financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the
Group relies on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on
the borrowers to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan
facility will be shared proportionately between the Group
and the lender on a pari passu basis to minimise moral
hazards. The mortality assumptions of reverse mortgages
are also reviewed on a regular basis, to assess the risk of
larger deviation between the actual and expected operating
results.

As at 31 December 2016, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2015:
HK$3 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2015: HK$3
million) higher.
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3.6. TRIAFRARNLFE 3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ 2DFEMIT (@ Fair value estimation
TRINTEAFEREHE The following table shows financial instruments
FAGHEE)RINNERIT A - recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
NFEREMRRIENAT different levels of fair value hierarchy have been

defined as follows:

U FERMZRERHRR o Quoted prices in active markets for identical
FHRARZIBN(E— assets or liabilities (Level 1);
B):

. BE—EBEZIRN o Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
SN AR AR 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
B (A8 klal i (a0 M either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
AR HENT ) AT ER 2 B from prices) (Level 2); and
(B=R): &k

J BRAFHAGIFIFEE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
FaIME 2 iz (R on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
AN 2 Hi7) (B=R) (Level 3).

F-B-xE+=A=1+-H F-F-a%+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2016 As at 31 December 2015
#-F 2-R B £ F_F

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TER TiEn TERT T TET THx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

"= Assets
fTESHIE Derivative financial instruments - 245,097 245,097 - 473,403 473,403
AR ETA Available-for-sale securities
— %I — Debt securities 3,947,856 649,335 4,597,191 2,264,054 2,035,223 4,299,277
— HibiF 5 — Other securities 2,380,486 - 2,380,486 2,339,090 - 2,339,090
6,328,342 894,432 7,222,774 4,603,144 2,508,626 7,111,770
b Liabilities
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 1,702,859 1,702,859 - 1,821,927 1,821,927

TAIABIARTEE AL Debt securities issued
AFETHIT AR designated as at fair value
BRIIRFIES through profit or 10ss upon
initial recognition - 137,385 137,385 - 343,398 343,398

- 1,840,244 1,840,244 = 2,165,325 2,165,325
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ZRRITEAFE M
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7)%0

No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technigue not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation technigues. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These derivatives are fair
valued using forward interest rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.



(b) HIEUQXFEHITENSHES (b)y Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not

M7 measured at fair value

F=2—FR"F+=ZA=+—H The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
EZF-—RFE+=_A=+— instruments not presented on the Group’s statement of
B AEHAFRTMSHKREK financial position at their fair values are not materially
BRATEEHZY @ TAR different from their fair values as at 31 December
KHESAFEHFEEEAT 2016 and 31 December 2015 except for the following
A o BREKEEBES N FEEE financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
WeEmIAEN  TRAEUR and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
FEITENE/m I A ZKE disclosed below:

B A FERRFEENR

Il

FoB-REtZR=1-H FoZ-aFtZR=1-A
As at 31 December 2016 Asat 31 December 2015

KA i

Carrying ATE %-R 4R Carmying AT £k £°F
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount Fair value Level1 Level2

TEn TEn TEn TER ThL Thr T Thr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

SHA Financial assets
15550 Investment securities
—#EEHH — held-to-maturity 9,931,665 10,129,040 9,829,061 299,979 10,274,001 10,506,512 10,206,401 300,111
SRR Financial liabilities
BRIRS A DeDt securities issued 34,096,082 34,169,149 - 34,169,149 33,119,813 33,335,388 = 33,335,388
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i)

(iif)

Annual Report 2016

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank
deposits. The fair value of floating-rate deposits is
the carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based
on market prices or broker/dealer price
quotations, which are the clean prices. Where
this information is not available, fair value has
been estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Other assets
These mainly represent cash collateral received

under CSA with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.



3.7.

v  EXTERSILES

RNFERFILETHS
RO ENItE - =T
ARE ™ Z RN A6
2 & T 2 5 50 5 % HR
A I B Mk ol 3R R
Rl REMIRE T
.

(vi)  HEAdmfR

HMARERE -TZT
—F+_AREETMN
F—ABBBRFATH
X BT (B ) 1 35 A9 42
B MEE TR
BIERN  HAFES
K E{E AR o

(vii) Rz U F B RO 3R K B A
FB

B2t ) B8 1k 2 A
BT IS ES RAA
BitH+=1N AR E
FEE - HRFESK
EEHEE « LRI
EZRBEARIT—DA
MU E - B FESK
E{EARE -

RAEHE
AEHER AR (HRFTERST
W& RN RIKE AR ) 7 B B
s

s  FHRNABMMEAE R K (MK
BAAK) FIENRAHE

s WRAKHFLEEEMEST
A SR B R AR B 3R

o  ARAKHMRERAR:

(v)  Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

(vi)  Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (Government) in
December 2003 and January 2004 with the fair
value approximating the carrying amount.

(vii) Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary);

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for

shareholders;

o To support the Group's stability and growth;
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o To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines)
issued by the Financial Secretary, by reference largely
to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework. The
minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the year,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

2016 2015

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

k&N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

REB = F Retained profits 5,023,307 5,251,052

EORAR S Proposed dividends = (725,000)

N f% & Contingency reserve 1,739,389 1,632,660

H A Other reserve 44,782 99,788
LAEA I E R FORE Allowance for loan impairment under

FI{EZ 1% & collective assessment 865 817

Hkx Deductions (127,723) (79,742)

RANER B AR Total capital base 8,680,620 8,179,575

BT B E Capital Adequacy Ratio 21.3% 21.9%
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38. EMAFTREMAGZIIIHE 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

TREED REREARLRE VSR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
MRAIDEB I H S FUA =M S financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
R BIZF R MR GZ 58 68 ER the Group's consolidated statement of financial position but
SFETZHIRERUESR T ENBESE are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
T ET 2R - R FR A BhXS B2 250 similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
BT #R - RARGLRUITAR A (B DT KBS Y The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
Bt 0 et o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

Fo5-~E+ZA=1-A FE-AET-A=1-A
As at 31 December 2016 Asat 31 December 2015
BXEFREGENSRAR RERA
pikilea & TN EH
Zfﬁ%% Related amount "% Related amount
RRZH not set off in the not set off in the
M&E consolidated statement ‘ consolidated statement
Carmying— of financial position Carying of financial positon*
amounts —8 amounty —
on the 2l onthe [RARL:D)
consolidated fA€MIE  HALKAR consolidated ~~~ #7 & YeHER
statementof  Derivative Cash A8 statement of erivative Cash A8
financial financial  collateral Net financial financial collateral Net
position  instruments paid amount’ position instruments paid amount’
T TET T TiEn T TiEn Titn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
SRR Financial assets
Eaiii4sIE  Postive fair values for
NFE derivative financia
instruments 245,097 (228,439) - 16,658 473403 (344,085) - 129,318
SRR Financial liabilities
AHHTELBIE  Negative fair values for
AT derivative financial
instruments 1,702,859 (228,439) (307,955 1,166,465 1821921 (344,085) 45.958) 1,431,384

@ [HEREBHRELSE M SRR RE I # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
M S| 83 P EE T H B AT statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
WBEEREFHATARN SRR liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
B/ REERH similar agreements including CSA.

i BEE X A B L HE SR L P e Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
NROESBE /MR BRELRSE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
BMRSGNFEL - I EAREN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
RO R SASAESH ° position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment
on a regular basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2016 is disclosed in Note 19.
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4.2. Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to
the loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and
the local property market in making estimation of the
payments which the Group is required to make in fulfilling
its obligations under the insurance and guarantee contracts.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
ultimate claim amount are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2016 is disclosed in Note 26.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage related businesses
in Hong Kong. Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the
mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest the surplus funds
from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
business. The Group is also organised in such a way that resource
allocation and performance measurement are based on the Group
as a whole in a single segment for mortgage related businesses.
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6. FIEUAN 6. Interestincome
2016 2015
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Loan portfolio 184,269 240,202
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 233,572 207,807
IEAIE R Investment securities 398,473 390,487
816,314 838,496
7. FEXZH 7. Interest expense
2015
FHIT
HK$'000
RITEFRRE KITESIESH Bank loans and debt securities issued 297,624 231,021
HAftb Others 28,048 17,147
325,672 248,168
REEHELZHBIEI2AUZETL(ZE—H Included within interest expenses are HK$324 million (2015:
F 247428 70) KB AR FEZAIT HK$247 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
ARz SRR © through profit or loss.
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8.

RIBRIE KBRS EMN 8.

E R 2 (M (@) FFE 26(a))

guarantee business

Gross premiums written (Note (a) and

2016

T8
HK$'000

Revenue account for mortgage insurance and

2015
TAET

HK$'000

Note 26(a)) 436,577 319,137
BRE AR (Ff)E 26(a)) Reinsurance premiums (Note 26(a)) (69,015) (47,886)
IRES 72 340 (P )E 26(a)) Net premiums written (Note 26(a)) 367,562 271,251
FROFEBIR 2R Y (32 00) (Increase)/decrease in unearned
AN premiums, net (52,558) 107,362
BEBHAR 2258480 (K1E 26(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 26(a)) 315,004 378,613
BR(74), /B 53 Net claims (incurred)/written back
(Bff5% 26(b)) (Note 26(b)) (4,066) 7,583
R EEE AR 2 Net premiums earned after provisions 310,938 386,196
HeZH commission expenses (139,116) (98,933)
BRE A BFEHFAE S E Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 22,157 15,565
il Pk Net commission expenses (116,959) (83,368)
HBRERF AT E AR Net premiums earned before
BER management expenses 193,979 302,828
BRI (FE D) Management expenses (Note (b)) (73,416) (71,149)
AR Underwriting gains 120,563 231,679
5p=2 Notes:
(a) ERBLIERAKBREWS - NEBH KB (a) Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on

/bR dE BT BURAV RS - SRR
B R ERBIHM AR B 55 E 1T 180l E i
R EEMA TN —Z D BTRAR S -

mortgage loans with a small portion of guarantee fees written from guarantee
business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises, premiums written from
mortgage insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans and on lump-sum loans
to owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement.

(b) BEEATAMNEI0LEL HH—2B5 ° (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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9. HflgA 9. Otherincome
2016 2015
F#&x T
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRE R A M TR Early prepayment fees and late charges 550 774
SLRZEEN Exchange difference (20,681) (38,708)
SRITARNFEERD 2 Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (7,640) (11,763)
ATt & ETIR R B AR B Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 83,440 72,748
SRR MW 2 (£ 12) Net gains on disposal of investments
(Note 12) 159,841 122,010
HAth Others (2,406) (2,235)
213,104 142,826

CRTAEAFEZRIHEYFA TSN L
M:NBEENAFENHAN A TAEAF
BE5HM9,500FBT(=F—AHF :3321Z
7T ) Kt I B 8 S E Uk 25 8,600 7 7 7T

—E—RFE:38ZET)  RHTFAE
KA RS FEANTETEAFESHK
1,200 BT (=ZF—ARF : 1,4007 % 7T)
RIEENARNFEZEITARZNE £1T
BEILEANFEWZEI300FET(ZF
—RF 600587 °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
the aggregate of (i) HK$95 million fair value loss on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge (2015: HK$332 million)
and HK$86 million fair value gain on the hedged items (2015:
HK$328 million); and (i) HK$12 million fair value loss on derivatives
not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2015: HK$14
million) and HK$13 million fair value gain on debt securities issued
designated as at fair value through profit or 10ss (2015: HK$6
million).
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10. £EXZH 10. Operating expenses

2016 2015
F#&xT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
8 AR Staff costs
— FHe MEF — Salaries and benefits 164,057 158,677
— BREeRA — FREMSEFKITK  — Pension costs — defined
contribution plans 10,017 9,313
DRE Premises
— e — Rental 30,966 30,966
— Hftb — Others 6,400 6,509
EZHE Directors’ fees = =
MEESSRAEEEZH Emoluments in respect of directors’
HEMRS AN T2ME other services in connection with
the management of the affairs
of the Company:
— % EMWRIEL — Salaries, allowances and bonus 5,132 -
— NIRRT RIFTVE Z 3K — Retirement scheme contributions 508 =
P18 (% 23) Depreciation (Note 23) 15,885 17,772
W2 & MRS Financial information services 6,266 6,075
JBi 5] 2% Consultancy fees 9,676 11,364
HMAERH Other operating expenses 27,786 25,972

276,693 266,648
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1. %EHENE 11. Auditor’s remuneration
2016 2015
FTER FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEHINHE Auditor’s remuneration:
— FZARS — Audit services 1,485 1,433
— Hih RS — Other services 1,425 314
2,910 1,747
U MR RIS i ) )
12. R TR RO &R i A 12. Net gains on disposal of investments
2015
FAT
HK$'000
HERRHKE 2 Net gains on disposal of investments:
— ZYF+—A—HBE FTHERNHIA — Realisation of amounts recognised
#) IR in reserves up to 1 January 122,970 129,989
— AFEFAEWE(SH)2E  — Net gains/(losses) arising in
current year 36,871 (7,979)
159,841 122,010
13. GFFREE# 13. Write-back of loan impairment allowances
2015
FAT
HK$'000
RRORER K Write-back of loan impairment allowances:
— A& 1T (HHE19(0b)) — Collective assessment (Note 19(b)) 713 242
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(a)

14. FRIN 14. Taxation

FEAKHERNINBIFIA (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

BEBEFE Hong Kong profits tax:
— HHARTIS R — Current income tax 27,543 57,427
— IEFERER — Adjustment in respect of prior years (9,373) (13,190)
18,170 44,237
BRIERR I - Deferred taxation:
— ARFEEGRE), T H — (Credit)/charge for current year (409) 187
17,761 44,424
LA [E 7= A B Al U A IR B g A AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% (= F — A F : 16.5%) KT =& (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
ITTREBNEHIK G - BTEF AR year. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
AL 165% (—ZF—HF : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
WEZR R TE S ERZEH o taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%).
AREFWBRT AR NI S RKA R The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
ERETENRICSTANERIT ¢ from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

B 758 B 42 ) Profit before taxation 621,745 769,576
#16.5% (ZF—HF : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

MBERITE (2015: 16.5%) 102,588 126,980
i sm - Tax effect of:
— BT AIA — income not subject to taxation (112,754) (99,817)
— TR FF 2 — expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 37,300 30,451

— NAEFEIFE — adjustment in respect of prior years (9,373) (13,190)
I 2 Taxation charge 17,761 44,424
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(b) MBRRARAWHEIILEA - (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2015
FHIT
HK$'000
BRI e Current tax assets
(BETIHEME~IR) (included in “Other assets”) 2,322 1,115
= HAFH IR f7 (R Current tax liabilities 94,745 129,153
156 JE 7 I A {7 Deferred tax liabilities 16,660 37,093
111,405 166,246
FZE-—RE+_A=+—HE=ZE There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—AF+ZA=+—H HEAEME 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
KRR B EBIN o
BBIERIN (3 7=) /iR B == Z H AR ED The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
D RENZZPAT - the movements during the year are as follows:
HERE
MEHRFTE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AYEEH REFx
tax and Fair value Cash flow Jk i
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
THT T T B T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-Z-1%-f-H As at 1 January 2015 3,507 (3,820) 77,146 (535) 76,298
FUERN(EN),/ 0k (Creditec)/charged to income
statement (393) 580 = = 187
FREMN(EA),/ Mk (Credited)/charged to equity - - (39.927) 535 (39392)
F-Z-RF+-A=1+—H Asat31December 2015 3,114 (3,240) 37,219 - 37,093
ThEFRNEA Credited to income statement (303) (106) - - (409)
FRERTA Credited to equity - - (20,024) - (20,024)
F=-Z-x5+=-A=1t-H Asat31December 2016 2,811 (3,346) 17,195 - 16,660
F+=NAR » TEAERBERIT There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
B/ NREBEE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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15. IR

Wk —F-AFEEBRR
FACE @AY 0.3625 78 7T

15. Dividends

2015
TAT
HK$'000

2016

TR
HK$'000

Proposed ordinary dividend of HK$0.3625
per ordinary share in respect of 2015 -

725,000

F_E—RENMN_ZFT—HEFEMNHN=_F
—RAFEM—_FE—NFEREDHINT.25/Z
BT (E BB SR EAR0.36258 ) &
35ZB (LR S R L EA01758
) e FoBE—tFMA+R ATLS X
B B25HE_Z—~"FETNELARE -

16. MEKIGHIA

The dividends paid in 2016 and 2015 in respect of 2015 and
2014 were HK$725 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.3625 per
ordinary share) and HK$350 million (ordinary dividend of HK$0.175
per ordinary share) respectively. On 10 April 2017, the directors
announced that no dividend will be paid in respect of 2016 in view
of business development.

16. Cash and short-term funds

RITIL S Cash at banks 58,444 68,535
IRITE HATF 5K Time deposits with banks 23,757,227 20,938,832
23,815,671 21,007,367

pATRERMES A RFRIASWMA
BREATEXRZBEHEIT=1ARIIHY

G4 o

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of transaction.

2016 2015

THExT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RTINS Cash at banks 58,444 68,535
RITEBTER Time deposits with banks 6,044,390 7,694,015
& RERIEIE Cash and cash equivalents 6,102,834 7,762,550
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17. BB RICEK

PATS & e R WA 8

17. Interest and remittance receivables

2016 2015
TAT

HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

Interest receivable from:

— FEEHHE LY — interest rate swap contracts 171,054 140,599

—IEAFRR — investment securities 111,682 110,473

— RITEHER — time deposits with banks 41,501 35,218
WA ESHIMFIE RS EI R Interest receivable and instalments,

in transit from loan portfolio 35,172 40,488

359,409 326,778

18. T &I E

(a)

TTEITRMEA

AREFANATINTET A hAREH
otz oAt

5 RAEE IR IA— B S REHR
ME— A REBNEE - HHASH
A RF RS ME LS IR - BRE
THMIEMIN - RERXZH TS R
g o ARANERXRAZHHF
REBTHREMBEERREONE
ERA - REAREFENESRZ S
NFREERHS - FHFLEENE XA

B o

ETMEAERIANBNEH - T
SZEMSRRERBANTAERE—D
HREEAE - MR MRS KBRS
NERENTAXTELRTHAF
18 - Eltt - FFPRERBR AR ] H I 7Y
ST MR o BB iA=L
TR EFFREN D) - STETAATBE
MNAKE = EA R (R ) M (7
R - STESHTANS LN
BUIEEH - ERERNHAFR
tBE  ROTETAESRA S RAfiz
N RAE - AIRENET KIBR S © FTis
BNTETERFHERT X e

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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a4/
ZYEH ATE BUEH AT(E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional B il notional R fifk
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR FET FET THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THARANHF2UTAEN () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

IAETE for accounting purposes
pilEgech:i Interest rate swaps 183,467 6,648 (261) 374,895 18,800 (478)
6,648 (261) 18800 (478)
(i) AEENRTELLA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
il Interest rate swaps 19,232,500 238,449 (100,476) 14,227,500 454279 (1,811)
gkt Currency swaps 7,218,109 - (1,602,122) 14,569,037 324 (1819,639)
238,449  (1,702,598) 454,603 (1,821,449)
BRIMTEIRR/ (Afk) Total recognised derivative
BA assets/(liabilities) 245,097  (1,702,859) 473403 (1,821927)
(b) XtimiEzh (b) Hedging activities
WETE T EEN A FEXN AR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
XF eIt EBimE  STEIAA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
KA FF & XA R A& o REFH A F1E fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
A EEREATRERE £1TRS currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
IF 5N TER AR 2 PT5| BUAY and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
FI 2= X B R HNSC RS B F) 2= 0 4% s in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
He T-EE—NRE+-_A=+—HBK no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
—E—RF+-A=+—8 HEE December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

A EAN SR HITET A ©
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19. WREE S 19. Loan portfolio, net
(a) SWREEHIKE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2016 2015
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
E%Hz%ﬁf?ﬁ( BE Residential mortgage portfolio 9,084,480 10,935,170
IR T A Non-mortgage portfolio 450,346 567,959
9,534,826 11,503,129
IRORE & Allowance for loan impairment (865) 817)
9,533,961 11,502,312
RHORER SIS RHAS HARE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
ﬂ$@é§’fﬁﬁ'ﬂ§§v‘tbﬁu? : outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:

2016 2015

ﬁfﬁ?&%e%ﬁﬁ bt¢H4&  Total allowance for loan impairment

E%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ as a percentage of the gross loan
portfolio 0.01% 0.01%
(b) BTREABHERBIEKE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on loan portfolio
2015
FAT
HK$'000
HEITAY Collective assessment

F—A—H As at 1 January 817 1,734

FU SR A E L (£ 13) Released to income statement
(Note 13) (713) (242)
Gl Loans written off (581) (2,202)

W [a] 2 55 T 3K Recoveries of loans previously
written off 1,342 1,527
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 865 817
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EH B RORER B8 - BZ EIKIFR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking

#ERImE - into account the current market value of the collateral.
AEE BRI BRI E R ET RS Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a
war portfolio basis are analysed as follows:
2015
FHET
HK$'000
RERFEE B Gross impaired loan portfolio 1,100 983
RRORERK & Allowance for loan impairment (829) (756)
271 227
DIFOR B % E/UZT e Allowance for loan impairment as
BER A 5 a percentage of gross impaired
loan portfolio 75.4% 76.9%

HTEJ\QJ\ BE BE S TTERES  Grossimpaired loan portfolio as a
B 7t percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01%

LABE TG A am iR 8] Allowance for loan impairment under
BER IR ETER S REIL % collective assessment for loans not

individually identified as impaired 36 61
(c) BRAEASHHMAHEERZR S (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan
& portfolio
2016
RIENWKFEL RFRHAR B AR WAL
AU E FEWA RIS
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FTET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI Amounts receivable:
— %R — within one year 38,299 8,293 46,592
——FREAFN — after one year but within
five years 140,445 25,904 166,349
—hFF — after five years 256,191 31,578 287,769

434,935 65,775 500,710
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2015
=L IVE GRS AR EA B Y VGRS
FIIE FBMA IS H
Present value [EEN Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FHETT FHETT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 ORI Amounts receivable:
—— &K — within one year 47,001 9,863 56,864
——FFERFN — after one year but within
five years 173,387 30,780 204,167
—R1FF — after five years 330,027 38,339 368,366
550,415 78,982 629,397
V5% 78 BB R AR 29 B2 UK FR M BT OB No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for
BEE - finance lease receivable.
20. IEHEE A 20. Investment securities
(a) FIftH&IESH (a) Available-for-sale securities
2016 2015
THET FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BN FES ik B S5 25 Debt securities at fair value
TEAE LM Listed in Hong Kong 93,280 224,082
TEBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 1,879,600 807,716
| ) Unlisted 2,624,311 3,267,479
RN BT DK E E A 5 Other securities at fair value
FEELE™M Listed in Hong Kong 2,380,486 2,339,090
] i EF A S E2R Total available-for-sale securities 6,977,677 6,638,367
EMIFHIER STREE S KB Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
KRETLES - estate investment trusts.
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B RATHIAIZE R o 4 Al 4 B iE A 40 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T @ issuers as follows:

RITREM S LA Banks and other financial institutions 3,799,257 3,453,212
NEIE Corporate entities 751,021 655,380
R BT Central governments - 175,148
NENAH Public sector entities 46,913 15,537
HAith Others 2,380,486 2,339,090
6,977,677 6,638,367
Al EIE SR SR T ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:
2016 2015
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F=E=E As at 1 January 6,638,367 5,734,162
H#0 Additions 4,422,019 4,265,100
& K ke Sale and redemption (4,076,381) (3,240,614)
WE4H Amortisation (2,366) 3,423
NF{EZD) Change in fair value 733 (111,566)
ANTIIL R ZER Exchange difference (4,695) (12,138)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 6,977,677 6,638,367
(b) HBEZEIHIESH (b) Held-to-maturity securities

T2 5 P A B TR B9 (5 S5 0E 55 Debt securities at amortised cost

FTEBEM Listed in Hong Kong 4,359,124 4,430,543
FEHEBREINET Listed outside Hong Kong 1,834,588 1,685,300
6,193,712 6,115,843

LT Unlisted 3,737,953 4,158,158
A ER IS B Total held-to-maturity securities 9,931,665 10,274,001
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B EITHZER DT A Z 2 B 5 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
I issuers as follows:
2015
FHIT
HK$'000
R1T M E M R Banks and other financial institutions 5,154,957 5,569,556
NEIE Corporate entities 3,801,339 3,954,900
NEN Public sector entities 908,595 678,756
R Central governments 66,774 70,789
9,931,665 10,274,001
FAEZIMNESFOZEDBRET The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised
as follows:
2016 2015
FHET T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F—A—H As at 1 January 10,274,001 9,168,795
by} Additions 676,237 2,112,356
& K e Sale and redemption (980,514) (956,997)
HE4H Amortisation (15,508) (10,951)
INTISL R ZEER Exchange difference (22,551) (39,202)
F+=—B=+—H As at 31 December 9,931,665 10,274,001
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21. BEATIRAR 21. Interests in subsidiaries

FZFE-—R"E+ZA=1+—8 ' xQAH Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2016
MEABEBIT are as follows:
HARN
WEAH
(REREA)
BHAH iR
BRITRARRAG F1E (FHRBA) BNE
(Rer R Fii#MRe  Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of  shares held by
AR R and fully paid up shares held by  the Company's
Place of FELE share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation Principal activities (Class of share) (or its nominee) (or its nominee)
BRAEBERARAR Bl TIAREBZERAA 1,000,000 7 (E1Ek) 100% TER
UNSEE
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited  Hong Kong Mortgage purchasesand ~ HK$1,000,000 (Ordinary) 100% N/A

servicing, and funding of
microfinance loans

EERBIABA (F)ARAA BB TR AEHEBLED  1000ET (EER) &R TER
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* Hong Kong No business activity in 2016* - HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
Bauhinia MBS Limited* TERS FIREAEBLED  1,000%T (EER) MER NER
Bauhinia MBS Limited* Cayman Islands No business activity in 2016f  US§1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
BERRERRIARAT &R PRFRS T (B FEm 100%
HKMC Credit & Guarantee Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A 100%
Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & B TEPRE 1AL (5ER) TEf 100%
Guarantee Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A 100%
Guarantee Corporation Limited
* BRIEFB(ARRGIIMRT - XL j;& * These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 of the
NCRHME L - TN B 358 A A X L Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares in
AR o these companies.
# X EE N T T AR TR RN & 1 TIRIBIE &M # These companies are set up for mortgage purchases and mortgage-backed
KT e securities issuance.
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22. FfFEIN ~ e RHEME~ 22. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2016 2015
TET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Uz [B] & = Repossessed assets 943 65
UNGIE=S 158 Corporate club debentures 750 750
EfbRrE Other assets 358,116 86,424
359,809 87,239
o e e .
23. BElER~ 23. Fixed assets

BEMLESE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture H Motor BH
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TEL THL THL THL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-%-1%-A-H Net book amount as at 1 January 2015
iR 17,915 1,583 15,505 106 35,109
RNE Additions 142 213 8,588 350 9,293
118 (K2 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (6,153) (624) (10,831) (164) (17.772)
F-E-RE+-A=1—H Netbookamount as at
INEpET 31 December 2015 11,904 1172 13,262 292 26,630
WE Additions 12 206 7,464 - 7,182
1718 (K2 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) 6.211) (709) (8.878) 87) (15,385)
F-E-XE+=A=t—-H Nethook amount as at
£ 31 December 2016 5,805 669 11,848 205 18,527
F=Z-x%+=A=1+-H Asat31December 2016
KA Cost 27915 7.834 174,210 775 210,734
ZitH1A Accumulated depreciation (22,110) (7,165) (162,362) (570) (192,207)
K2 Net book amount 5,805 669 11,848 205 18,527
F-ZE-RF+-A=+—H Asat31December 2015
AR Cost 27,803 7,628 166,746 1,000 203,177
ESapills Accumulated depreciation (15,899) (6,456) (153,484) (708) (176,547)
iEEET Net book amount 11,904 1,172 13,262 292 26,630
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24, MFFIR

24. Interest payable

2016 2015

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

AT B IR B2 A8

Interest payable from:

— EAR{THREIES — debt securities issued 206,101 159,643
— FEREBHEY — interest rate swap contracts 9,317 10,056
— B — other liabilities 2,735 1,154

218,153 170,853

%.ENMW‘ENﬁI&E%ﬁ

n

25. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities

2016 2015

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

IVER LIRS IVER B3 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 107,400 46,838
EAth 1 (7= Other liabilities 5,089,076 4,717,601
E ik Other provision 31,917 30,984
5,228,393 4,795,423

H Ath $1 G2 8 R /N B B RER TR T AR
BIE B HEATUR B AR 4R 7% R 44 3 (B 4Bk
B R K #8 5% JF % ) 807,181,000 ;T (= &
— A F 1 460,447,000 7T) (MH)E32) - 5
FERBT-EE=F1+-_ARK=_2TNF
— A B BT E B3R 18 55 30 (5 BT &2 HE hn o
B B 336 FE X 1) 4,281,895,0008 7T (=&
— R : 4,257,154,00087T) °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee and fund received
(net of claims and related expenses) of HK$807,181,000 (2015:
HK$460,447,000) under the special concessionary measures of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 32) and the deferred
consideration of HK$4,281,895,000 (2015: HK$4,257,154,000) used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government in December 2003 and January 2004.
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26. RRE D25 A AR 4

v

P

)3,

E2 ]
Gross
TR

HK$'000

2016

BRE
Reinsurance
FAT
HK$'000

]

Net
FiEn
HK$'000

Gross
TR
HK$000

Reinsurance
TAL
HK$'000

I 26. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

ARBHRFRAREARS Provision for unearned premiums
and guarantee fees 1,013,155 142,155 871,000 943,685 125,243 818,442
ARERSE Provision for outstanding claims:
— 28R/ () BR — claims reported/(recovery) 10,981 235 10,746 971 (1) 9,772
— B BRBRHR — claims incurred but not reported 24,414 3,637 20,777 25,389 341 21978
35,395 3,872 31,523 35,160 3410 31,750
1,048,550 146,027 902,523 978,845 128,653 850,192
(a) RFHFRERBREAKRES (a) Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
ST premiums and guarantee fees
2016
ZH BRRE A Edij 4
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TiEL TER TER TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 943,685 125,243 818,442 1,066,272 140,468 925,804
BWERE (H28) Premiums written (Note 8) 436,577 69,015 367,562 319,137 47,886 211,251
BAERT (hE8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (367,107) (52,103)  (315,004) (441,724) (63,111) (378,613)
F+-A=t-H As at 31 December 1,013,155 142,155 871,000 943,685 125,243 818,442
(b) RAPFREBZHHSWTUOT (b) Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims
2016
2] BRR 25 E2 ] i
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TiEx TiEx TiEx TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 35,160 3,410 31,750 45817 3711 42,106
EffER Claims paid (5,958) - (5,958) (3051) = (3,051)
BhEaZ Claims recovery 1,824 159 1,665 535 307 278
Bt /(mik)BR (HHES) - Claims incurred/(written back) (Note 8):
—BERER — claims reported 5,344 77 5,267 (3415) (304) 311
—BEhERERNE — claims incurred but not reported (975) 226 (1,201) (4776) (304 (4472
4,369 303 4,066 (8191 (608) (7,583)
F+-R=1-H As at 31 December 35,395 3,872 31,523 35,160 3410 31,750
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() fEzREMR (c) Liability adequacy test

BITAGRFERNEN - ZRE2HEY The liability adequacy test considers current estimates
NeRneERBPRUWEZAZHEXNE of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows
MERNIMGIT MXERTFZZF such as claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at
—RFETZA=+—HBRZFT—0F 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group’s
TZA=+—HB - XEFBRK AR insurance liabilities are adequate.
TR °
27. ERITREZIUES 27. Debt securities issued
2016 2015
FHExT FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR P8 £ FR A Bl ik A 45 55 1E 25 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
R AR MTN 9,097,985 5,681,736
IRERE AR AN B IR B S5IE 5 247 Total debt securities carried
at amortised cost 9,097,985 5,681,736
FEE X HRI B H LA FEX HE Debt securities designated as hedged
RS H items under fair value hedge
RmEITAERTIHRGRS DIP notes 3,868,312 4,925,563
R MTN 21,129,785 22,512,514
FEE X HRI B FF A A FEX ) Total debt securities designated as
RBIUES BAN hedged items under fair value hedge 24,998,097 27,438,077
FNBFIARIEE I LA FET 4 Debt securities designated as at
T AR SR FIE S fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition
5 TAETITRIGRS DIP notes 137,385 139,083
ZEMRF AT REA GRS RBIP and other notes - 204,315
T WA IART 5 7E N AN FEZ 0 Total debt securities designated as at
T A B EI 55 B8 fair value through profit or l0ss
upon initial recognition 137,385 343,398
B AITHRSIES &A1 Total debt securities issued 34,233,467 33,463,211
FEREERT(ZE—RF : T) TOHEH During the year, no debt securities (2015: nil) were designated on
N B TE A A FEZE I AR FGESIE initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
o REMFIEF 2 ATFEERDRTEE value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
FERBBE o FAEFIAN - FEEAUA rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
FEZEIT ARG ERAGRKEE @ B profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
RERARIFEE LN E T B B A AR 515 designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
B AR 46,615,000 T (= F recognition is HK$46,615,000 (2015: HK$45,802,000) lower than the
— R : 45,802,000 7T) ° amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the note holders.
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ZEHE RN AR FHETIRN SRR
REAARZERNRE S REMEXN

BT o

BERITHRSFIULSFNEIBERNT

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes
in the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities
designated as at fair value.

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2015

T

HK$'000

T—HR—H As at 1 January 34,937,768 34,414,640
KAT Issuance 24,531,120 23,046,815
R TEE Less: Redemption (23,686,351) (22,526,495)
GNTSE 3 E 50 Exchange difference 63 2,808
HANMNEE Total nominal value 35,782,600 34,937,768
APEEEHTLEER Unamortised portion of discount (93,688) (118,179)
N EIFE Fair value adjustment (1,455,445) (1,356,378)
FT+=—HA=+—H As at 31 December 34,233,467 33,463,211

REE RITHRES Notes issued during the year comprise:

B AT HEE Amount issued at nominal value 24,531,120
B Y ER F M Consideration received 24,501,707

A B RITHRS IS B A S E T
RfE - MATRERSIES § HRE R
ECRERIEBRARR -

28. Bx A

BERITRAR
20{Z B A

28.

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

Share capital

2016 2015
TAT

HK$'000

THERT
HK$'000

Issued and fully paid:
2 billion ordinary shares

2,000,000 2,000,000
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(a)
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(iv)
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(i)

AR BT AFE R B R &K
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F:209ZB T RIS K
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RitX - RHE AL ERIEREE
7K R B R S A RO 2 BT BRAR
IE 748 &1 59 1,00012 7 7T &9 )\
FRAE (R R R B9 BT 5B R 7=
FEHSTHIES2

29. Material related party transactions

(a)

The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong
Kong as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company
entered into various transactions with the following related
parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), a Government-related entity, included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1.5
million (2015: HK$1.5 million) by way of fees to the
HKMA for such services during the year;

the Company incurred secondment fee of HK$15.9
million (2015: HK$12.8 million) for secondees from the
HKMA during the year;

the Company paid back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2015: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year; and

the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided
the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving Credit
Facility, and there was no outstanding balance as at 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).

Transactions with the Government included the following:

the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$170
million (2015: HK$209 million) from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated during the year; and

the Company provided a loan guarantee product
with 80% guarantee coverage under the existing
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a
concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan
guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable
by the Government with details set out in Note 32.
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(i)

TtoA=t—BAEMEREALH

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)  the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the
course of the Company's ordinary business; and

(i) the Company as scheme operator, the HMML and

various participating banks as loan originators

entered into loan participation agreements under the

Microfinance Scheme pursuant to which the HMML

would fund all or part of the microfinance loans as

funding vehicle for the Company.

The balance of the amounts due to the relevant related

INEREZ Y Ul NE parties as at 31 December are as follows:
B
The Government
2015
FHIT
HK$'000
H b 5 {5 (BfdE 25) Other liabilities (Note 25) 5,089,076 4,717,601
(b) EEEHEHEAR (b) Key management personnel

TEEERERANEERHEEAENI KRR
TURA ~ I ST B AR AL S EA
T BREERSREEAR -

REEIEEERARNEFHERE

FehEMEHRE AR

Key management are those persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
directors and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2016 2015

FATT

HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 20,547 18,859
BEEEF Post-employment benefits 1,997 1,633
22,544 20,492
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30. &3 30. Commitments
(a) &KX (a) Capital

2016 2015
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEAERITS Authorised and contracted for 321 -
EHLEBRITL Authorised but not contracted for 9,549 8,172
9,870 8,172

(b) ZEMELH

TERYR - RIEAADEHHELER
) MAE K AR SRR RE S 500
DT

(b) Operating lease

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
analysed as follows:

DREYNL - Office premises:
— T EZT—4F — not later than one year 29,753 32,458
— 5T =% THE — later than one year and not later
than five years - 29,753
29,753 62,211

31. HIBERE A

F_FE—XRFE+-A=+—8  KA&EHH
NEEILIR BENL R 16812 TL(ZFE—REF ¢
13412%7) » B 27128 (ZE—HF :
2127470 ) B R BIRE A RE K BR
i MASENBETEER 1411238 T
(ZZFE—FHF : N3ZBET) N -

31. Mortgage insurance business

As at 31 December 2016, the total risk-in-force of the Group is
approximately HK$16.8 billion (2015: HK$13.4 billion) of which
HK$2.7 billion (2015: HK$2.1 billion) is ceded to the approved
reinsurers and the balance of HK$14.1 billion (2015: HK$11.3 billion)
is retained by the Group.
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32. H/NERAF BRI R T R4 51
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BELAE TREOIRIR B KT R s B 2 80
DURARIE AR AN 91,0002 78 7T H9 J\ B HE 4R
REEH FAIRR G - e T BI4E 5198
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FRIBX MR RIBXF S - Al
SO AT B - AT IR (R BT
AR AR 2R - BTS2 A
BT« KA I @ IR R
HEEFE -

BRENMFRINRHER> R WAEH
MZE A RS R A RERFERAOEA - &
AREHEMEZBERTIRET MW -
ETARBRARRRBMAEZ L™ M &
SHEIAA A KU A XS FF a2 8 T
BT o Bt - 1% 7 dn B XU AR IR B 5
TARERANE = RERINEE - ARIEM K
AR KAEN R AT R XS] - REARE
fAIRANESN -

32. Special concessionary measures under the SME

Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Company provided a loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment
of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the Government. All guarantee
fees collected under this special loan guarantee product are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Company is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect
of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Company operates only this product
for the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the
risk-in-force for this product has not been included as the Group’s
off-balance sheet exposures and no capital charge is required
under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio approved by the
Financial Secretary.
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33. RNAMM SRR RIESZEL 33. Statement of financial position and reserve

Bl movement of the Company
BNAIARAFE—XRE+A 33.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
=t+—HHMUWSRAR 31 December 2016
2015
FET
HK$'000
B’rE ASSETS
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 23,809,977 20,998,850
R B RS FR Interest and remittance
receivables 352,559 319,481
TEESmMIA Derivative financial instruments 245,097 473,403
EES BN Loan portfolio, net 6,244,373 7,635,764
IEHIR Investment securities:
—A[HEE — available-for-sale 6,977,677 6,638,367
—BAERH — held-to-maturity 9,931,665 10,274,001
Ml A R Interests in subsidiaries 3,103,552 3,690,964
FRATERIN - 124 REAMES  Prepayments, deposits and other
assets 357,734 86,197
EFE &~ Fixed assets 18,527 26,630
BRR &= Reinsurance assets 146,072 128,740
B BE Total assets 51,187,233 50,272,397
AR LIABILITIES
INEREESS Interest payable 218,153 170,853
RTINS TS R Accounts payable, accrued
H MR expenses and other liabilities 5,228,098 4,795,133
TEESRMIEA Derivative financial instruments 1,702,859 1,821,927
L ERF I £ 3R Current tax liabilities 94,745 129,153
156 FE 75 15 17 {5 Deferred tax liabilities 16,608 36,992
RS B 15 Insurance liabilities 1,048,908 979,549
B AITRSIES Debt securities issued 34,233,467 33,463,211
AREE Total liabilities 42,542,838 41,396,818
D& EQUITY
WA AN SRR K% :  Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holders:
A& AN Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
IR A Retained profits 33.2 4,822,686 5,058,386
XU i & contingency reserve 33.2 1,739,389 1,632,660
N EES Fair value reserve 33.2 82,320 184,533
N B Total equity 8,644,395 8,875,579
YN E IR Total liabilities and equity 51,187,233 50,272,397
EERET_Z—tHFMWAT+HE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
R FIAT on 10 April 2017.
BGER Norman T. L. Chan =58 Raymond L. C. Li

B|FEF#MTESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director — H7TEF# & Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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33.2 AN AW fEE

RE R

Retained

profits
TiEx
HK$'000

RE#E
Contingency
reserve
THEx
HK$'000

33.2 Reserves of the Company

AVERE
Fair value
reserve
T
HK$'000

NS
Hedging B8
reserve Total
TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-n&-f-H Asat 1 January 2015 4,897 447 1,437,745 386,161 (2,707 6,718,646
REFRA Profit for the year 705,854 - - - 705,854
Hib2EHE Other comprehensive income:
EHETANATETS  Change infair value of
available-for-sale securities
—AEASHAN — net unrealised losses - - (111,560) - (111,566)
— HENTY — realisation on disposal - - (129,989) - (129,989)
— 5 — tax effect - - 39.927 - 39927
b aRal Cash flow hedges
—BARGRNATER — fair value changes transferred
to income Statement - - - 3242 3242
— B — tax effect - - = (535) (539)
AEELANEEH Total comprehensive income
for the year 705,854 - (201,628) 2,707 506,933
HRERFIERTFANL  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFFA0%HT%E premium eamed from retained
REEE profits to contingency reserve (221,244) 221,244 - - -
ARRIEZKEEREER  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 26,329 (26,329) - - -
BERZE-EERE Dividends paid related to 2014 (350,000) - - - (350,000)
F-Z-RA%+-FA=+—H/ Asat31December 2015/
“Z-r"¥-A-H 1 January 2016 5,058,386 1,632,660 184,533 = 6,875,579
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REET KBS AVERE NAEE
Retained  Contingency Fair value Hedging EE
profits reserve reserve reserve Total
TiEx BT TAL TAL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KEE G Profit for the year 596,029 = = = 596,029
e Eha : Other comprehensive income:
AEEEEFNATES)  Changeinfair value of
available-for-sale securities
— REAW AT — net unrealised gains - - 733 - 733
— HENZE — realisation on disposal - - (122970) - (122,970)
—Hm — tax effect - - 20,024 - 20,024
FEELARGEH Total comprehensive income
for the year 596,029 - (102,213) - 493816
HRBEFERTFANL  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REBFM 0% T5%E premium eamed from retained
R fEE profits to contingency reserve (183,043) 183,043 - - -
Bk S B ERR ST Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 76,314 (76,314) - - -
ERf-E-—RERS Dividends paid related to 2015 (725,000) - - - (725,000)
F-F-RE+=B=1+-H Asat31December 2016 4,822,686 1,739,389 82,320 - 6,644,395

N-F-TER-T-—FNTE4L
§ 0T 57 X0 0 B R A0 B 1t S
o QLI - PRARTHOAS

AL o

brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve
when cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since
then, no new cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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6. EETRH  RHMEAHTH
EAMEXRR

HE-Z—RE+-A=+—HIFER -
PEETFT BT AK AT RERN —
77 NARFWSEEEN  BFERENR
AAREEMALTREFRER BRI R
BAEPDE) EL P AEERKEEREAF
BERENEARS - RHMEY

35. B EIRE

EFERT -2 tFOATHBIAMS
Rk -

34.

35.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016, there
subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which
any member of the Group was a party, and in which any person
who was a director of the Company at any time in the year or a
connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
such person had, directly or indirectly, a material interest.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 10 April 2017.
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